

RICHARD BEST
REGIONAL DIRECTOR
Lara S. Mehraban
Sheldon L. Pollock
Philip A. Fortino
Lindsay S. Moilanen
Attorneys for Plaintiff
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
New York Regional Office
100 Pearl Street, Suite 20-100
New York, New York 10004
212-336-1014 (Fortino)
FortinoP@sec.gov

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

**SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,**

Plaintiff,

-against-

DAVID W. SCHAMENS,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT

22 Civ. ____ ()

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”), whose New York Regional Office is located at 100 Pearl Street, Suite 20-100, New York, New York 10004, for its Complaint against David W. Schamens (“Schamens” or “Defendant”), whose address is 812 Northern Shores Pt., Greensboro, North Carolina 27455, alleges as follows:

SUMMARY

1. This action arises from a multi-million dollar securities fraud perpetrated by Schamens, an investment adviser, who, rather than investing his client’s funds, directed them into his own pocket.

2. From at least February 2019, Schamens induced multiple individuals to invest in a purported investment fund called the TradeStream Algo Fund, LP (the “Algo Fund”). The Defendant told investors that the Algo Fund would pursue an algorithm-driven stock trading strategy with the potential for high returns.

3. But Schamens never invested any of the funds he solicited. Instead, the Defendant used most of the investors’ money to pay personal expenses or to make Ponzi-like payments to earlier investors seeking to exit the fund.

4. Schamens concealed the fraudulent nature of the Algo Fund by providing investors with fake account statements that showed large profits and by providing them with a fake letter from an auditing firm vouching for the bona fides of the Algo Fund.

5. All told, Schamens stole at least \$1.8 million of his clients’ money.

VIOLATIONS

6. By virtue of the foregoing conduct and as alleged further herein, Defendant has violated Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)]; Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5]; and Sections 206(1), 206(2), and 206(4) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (“Advisers Act”) [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1), 80b-6(2), 80b-6(4)] and Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-8].

7. Unless Defendant is restrained and enjoined, he will engage in the acts, practices, transactions, and courses of business set forth in this Complaint or in acts, practices, transactions, and courses of business of similar type and object.

NATURE OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND RELIEF SOUGHT

8. The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred upon it by

Section 20(b) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(b)]; Sections 21(d)(1) and 21(d)(5) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d)(1) and 78u(d)(5)]; and Section 209(d) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-9(d)].

9. The Commission seeks a final judgment: (a) permanently enjoining Defendant from violating the federal securities laws and rules this Complaint alleges he has violated; (b) ordering Defendant to disgorge all ill-gotten gains he received as a result of the violations alleged here and to pay prejudgment interest thereon; (c) ordering Defendant to pay civil money penalties pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)], Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)], and Section 209(e) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-9(e)]; and (d) ordering any other and further relief the Court may deem just and proper.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77v(a)], Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78aa], and Section 214 of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-14].

11. Defendant, directly and indirectly, has made use of the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails and wires, and/or of the facilities of a national securities exchange in connection with transactions, acts, practices, and courses of business alleged herein.

12. Venue lies in this District under Section 22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77v(a)], Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78aa], and Section 214 of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-14]. Certain of the acts, practices, transactions, and courses of business alleged in this Complaint occurred within this District. Specifically, the Algo Fund and a related business entity used by Schamens in the fraud had their principal places of business in Secaucus,

New Jersey. Schamens also solicited at least one investor who currently resides in Lake Hiawatha, New Jersey and two investors who resided in New Jersey at the time of their investment.

DEFENDANT

13. **Schamens**, age 64, resides in Greensboro, North Carolina. From 1986 to 1990, Schamens was associated with various entities registered with the Commission. In 1992, the Commission instituted a settled Order against Schamens for violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act, Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rules 10b-5 and 10b-9 thereunder, as well as aiding and abetting violations of Sections 15(c) and 17(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 15c2-4, 15c3-1, 15c3-3, 17a-3, and 17a-4 thereunder. *See In the Matter of David W. Schamens*, Exch. Act. Rel. No. 30691 (May 12, 1992). In that proceeding, the Commission found, among other things, that Schamens misappropriated investor funds. Schamens was barred from association with any broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, investment adviser, or investment company.

OTHER RELEVANT ENTITIES

14. **TradeStream Algo Fund, LP (the “TS Algo Fund”)** is a Delaware limited partnership with its principal place of business in Secaucus, New Jersey. The Algo Fund was founded in February 2019. It purported to be a “proprietary algorithmic trading fund.”

15. **TradeStream Analytics, Ltd. (“TS Analytics”)** is a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in Secaucus, New Jersey. Analytics was founded in 2007 and purported to be the “technology vendor” for the Algo Fund. Schamens controlled TS Analytics.

FACTS

I. THE OFFERING FRAUD

16. Schamens began soliciting prospective investors for the Algo Fund as early as February 2019.

17. At that time, Schamens was teaching investment seminars through an entity called TradeStream University (“TS University”). The TS University students were among the prospective investors targeted by Schamens.

18. Schamens previously had raised money from other investors to invest in other fund vehicles. He also solicited these investors to move their money from the other funds to the Algo Fund.

19. Schamens provided prospective investors in the Algo Fund with a confidential offering memorandum (“COM”). The COM represented that the Algo Fund was an “investment vehicle” that had been “formed for the purpose of aggregating investor funds for management.” It further stated that the Algo Fund sought to “provide economic return to investors through capital appreciation of securities in [its] portfolio.”

20. The COM further represented that the managing partner of the fund, Algo Advisors, would have sole discretion of the fund’s investments. According to the COM, Algo Advisors would use algorithms from Analytics to make investment decisions. Investors in the Algo Fund understood that Schamens controlled Algo Advisors and therefore would exercise authority over all of the investments.

21. The COM represented that the Algo Fund would make its securities investments through one of three specifically identified broker-dealers.

22. According to the COM, the Algo Fund would allocate 100% of its trading profits and losses to each investor’s account.

23. In addition to providing prospective investors with the COM, Schamens made

additional representations about the Algo Fund through other writings and verbally.

24. For example, Schamens provided prospective investors with a presentation that stated that monies invested in the Algo Fund “are auto traded by Tradestream algos.” The presentation further claimed that the algorithm selected stocks and exchange traded funds based on “Average Daily Volume, Trend patterns, and Volatility measurements.” And, that “Funds may be withdrawn upon notice during the first 10 business days of each quarter end month, payable on the 15th of the following month after quarter end.” The presentation also provided examples of the results of the algorithmic trading in certain securities.

25. In conversations with investors in the Algo Fund, Schamens represented investments would have up to an 18% annual rate of return.

26. Investors in the Algo Fund signed subscription agreements purporting to sell them limited partnership (“LP”) interests. The LP interests were identified as securities, and the subscription agreement stated the securities had not been registered with the Commission and were being offered pursuant to an exemption to the registration requirements.

27. From January 2020 through August 2021, at least 16 investors invested approximately \$1.8 million in the Algo Fund.

28. The Algo Fund was entrusted to Schamens to manage, and Schamens had sole discretion to control the funds invested in the Algo Fund.

29. Each of the representations Schamens made to prospective investors through the COM or otherwise about the Algo Fund was false, and Schamens knew they were false at the time he made them.

30. At the time he solicited the investors, Schamens had no intention of investing any of the money in the manner described to the investors or otherwise. Indeed, Algo Fund did not

have an account at the three broker-dealers through which the fund purportedly was trading.

31. Schamens knew at the time he solicited the investors that he would be using the funds they invested to pay his personal expenses and for other non-investment purposes.

III. SCHAMENS CONCEALED HIS FRAUD

32. After investors gave him their money, Schamens continued to make false statements to the investors to conceal his fraud.

33. Schamens provided investors in the Algo Fund with monthly statements purporting to show the value and performance of their account. In 2020, some of the statements showed year-to-date returns of over 80 percent.

34. Schamens also caused tax forms to be prepared and issued to some investors each year, showing each investor's purported gain on their investment.

35. The monthly statements and tax forms were false. Because there were no investments in the account, there were no investment gains in any of the investor accounts.

36. At the time he provided the account statements and tax forms to investors, Schamens knew that the information contained in them about investment returns was false.

37. Schamens also provided Algo Fund investors with access to an online portal where they could view certain information about their investments.

38. In November 2020, a "2019 Annual Report" was uploaded to the portal (the "Audit Letter"). The Audit Letter purported to be from an audit firm and indicated the firm had reviewed and audited transactions for the Algo Fund and "independently verified all transactions."

39. In fact, no audit of the Algo Fund had been performed. Schamens knew that the statements in the Audit Letter were false at the time he made it available to the Algo Fund investors.

IV. SCHAMENS USED INVESTOR FUNDS FOR PERSONAL EXPENSES

40. Rather than invest the money investors contributed to the Algo Fund, Schamens used it to pay personal expenses and to repay earlier investors exiting the fund.

41. Schamens used the majority of investor funds sent to the Algo Fund for personal expenses.

42. Of the \$1.8 million sent to the Algo Fund by investors, Schamens sent over \$1.3 million to an account in the name of Analytics for which he was the sole signatory.

43. Schamens then used the Analytics account to pay personal expenses, such as payments to personal attorneys and retail purchases.

44. Schamens also sent approximately \$500,000 from the Analytics account to several personal accounts in his name. Schamens used the funds sent to these personal accounts for personal expenses such as his mortgage, cars, attorney payments, retail spending, and political contributions.

45. Schamens also sent approximately \$700,000 from the Analytics account to another bank account he controlled. He used \$100,000 of these funds to pay his personal attorneys and \$430,000 to settle arbitration claims against him.

V. SCHAMENS USED INVESTOR FUNDS TO REPAY EARLIER INVESTORS

46. In early 2021, two investors in Algo Fund sought redemptions of at least part of their investments.

47. At the time of the redemption requests, the Algo Fund account did not have the funds to meet them.

48. Schamens gave the two investors a series of excuses for not honoring the redemption requests.

49. On or about June 11, 2021, two new investors sent a total of \$380,000 to the Algo

Fund account.

50. After receiving those funds, on June 11 and 14, 2021, Schamens sent a total of \$250,000 to the two investors who had sought redemptions.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act)

51. The Commission re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 50 of this Complaint.

52. By engaging in the conduct described above, Defendant, in the offer or sale of securities, knowingly, recklessly, or negligently, by the use of means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or the mails, directly or indirectly:

- a. Employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud;
- b. Obtained money or property by means of untrue statements of material facts, or omissions to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or
- c. Engaged in transactions, practices, or courses of business which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

53. By engaging in the foregoing conduct, Defendant violated, and unless restrained and enjoined, will continue to violate Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 Thereunder)

54. The Commission re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 50 of this Complaint.

55. By engaging in the conduct described above, Defendant knowingly or recklessly,

in connection with the purchase or sale of securities, directly or indirectly, by the use or means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or the mails, or the facilities of a national securities exchange:

- a. Employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud;
- b. Made untrue statements of material facts or omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or
- c. Engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person.

56. By engaging in the foregoing conduct, Defendant violated, and unless restrained and enjoined, will continue to violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violations of Sections 206(1), 206(2), and 206(4) of the Advisers Act and Rule 206(4)-8 Thereunder)

57. The Commission re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 50 of this Complaint.

58. By engaging in the conduct described above, Defendant, while acting as an investment adviser, by use of the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce and of the mails, directly or indirectly:

- a. employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud clients and prospective clients;
- b. engaged in transactions, practices, or courses of business which operate as a fraud or deceit upon clients and prospective clients; and

- c. engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business which are fraudulent, deceptive or manipulative.

59. By engaging in the foregoing conduct, Defendant violated, and unless restrained and enjoined, will continue to violate Sections 206(1), 206(2), and 206(4) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1) and 80b-6(2)], and Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-8].

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court enter a Final Judgment:

I.

Permanently enjoining Defendant and his agents, servants, employees and attorneys and all persons in active concert or participation with any of them from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)], Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], and Sections 206(1), 206(2), and 206(4) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1), 80b-6(2), and 80b-6(4)] and Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-8];

II.

Ordering Defendant to disgorge all ill-gotten gains and/or unjust enrichment received directly or indirectly, with pre-judgment interest thereon, as a result of the alleged violations, pursuant to Exchange Act Sections 21(d)(5) and 21(d)(7) [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d)(5) and 78u(d)(7)];

III.

Ordering Defendant to pay civil monetary penalties under Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)], Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)], and

Section 209(e) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-9(e)];

IV.

Granting any other and further relief this Court may deem just and proper.

JURY DEMAND

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff demands that this case be tried to a jury.

Dated: New York, New York
March 7, 2022

/s/ Richard Best
RICHARD BEST
REGIONAL DIRECTOR
Lara S. Mehraban
Sheldon L. Pollock
Philip A. Fortino
Lindsay S. Moilanen
Attorneys for Plaintiff
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
New York Regional Office
100 Pearl Street, Suite 20-100
New York, New York 10004
212-336-1014 (Fortino)
FortinoP@sec.gov

CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS

Securities and Exchange Commission

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Philip A. Fortino, Securities and Exchange Commission, 100 Pear Street, Suite 20-100, New York, NY 10004, (212) 336-1014

DEFENDANTS

David W. Schamens

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant Guilford County, NC (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

Attorneys (If Known) Sarah E. Paul, Eversheds Sutherland (US) LLP, 1114 6th Ave, New York, NY 10036, (212) 301-6587

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an "X" in One Box Only)

- 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff, 2 U.S. Government Defendant, 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party), 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)

III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an "X" in One Box for Plaintiff and One Box for Defendant)

- Citizen of This State, Citizen of Another State, Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country, PTF DEF, 1 1, 2 2, 3 3, 4 4, 5 5, 6 6

IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an "X" in One Box Only)

Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

Table with columns: CONTRACT, REAL PROPERTY, CIVIL RIGHTS, TORTS, PRISONER PETITIONS, FORFEITURE/PENALTY, LABOR, IMMIGRATION, BANKRUPTCY, SOCIAL SECURITY, FEDERAL TAX SUITS, OTHER STATUTES. Includes various legal categories like Personal Injury, Labor, Intellectual Property Rights, etc.

V. ORIGIN (Place an "X" in One Box Only)

- 1 Original Proceeding, 2 Removed from State Court, 3 Remanded from Appellate Court, 4 Reinstated or Reopened, 5 Transferred from Another District, 6 Multidistrict Litigation - Transfer, 8 Multidistrict Litigation - Direct File

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity): 15 U.S.C. § 77t(d); 15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3); 15 U.S.C. § 80b-9(d)

Brief description of cause: Civil enforcement action by the Securities and Exchange Commission

VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:

CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P. DEMAND \$ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: JURY DEMAND: Yes No

VIII. RELATED CASE(S) IF ANY

(See instructions): JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER

DATE March 7, 2022 SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD s/ Richard Best

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

- I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.** Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, giving both name and title.
- (b) County of Residence.** For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)
- (c) Attorneys.** Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting in this section "(see attachment)".
- II. Jurisdiction.** The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X" in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
 United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here. United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
 Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
 Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; **NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.**)
- III. Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.** This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this section for each principal party.
- IV. Nature of Suit.** Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code that is most applicable. Click here for: [Nature of Suit Code Descriptions](#).
- V. Origin.** Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
 Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
 Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
 Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing date.
 Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
 Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict litigation transfers.
 Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.
 Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to changes in statute.
- VI. Cause of Action.** Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. **Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity.** Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service.
- VII. Requested in Complaint.** Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
 Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
 Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.
- VIII. Related Cases.** This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.

**UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY**

**SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,**

Plaintiff,

-against-

DAVID W. SCHAMENS,

Defendant,

22 Civ. _____ ()

**DESIGNATION OF AGENT
FOR SERVICE**

Pursuant to Local Rule 101.1(f), because the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) does not have an office in this District, the United States Attorney for the District of New Jersey is hereby designated as eligible as an alternative to the Commission to receive service of all notices or papers in the captioned action. Therefore, service upon the Chief of the Economic Crimes Unit of the United States Attorney’s Office for the District of New Jersey, 970 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 07102, shall constitute service upon the Commission for purposes of this action.

Dated: March 7, 2022
New York, New York

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Richard Best
RICHARD BEST
REGIONAL DIRECTOR
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION
New York Regional Office
100 Pearl Street, Suite 20-100
New York, New York 10004
(212) 336-1021

**UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY**

**SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,**

Plaintiff,

-against-

DAVID W. SCHAMENS,

Defendant.

22 Civ. ____ ()

LOCAL CIVIL RULE 11.2 CERTIFICATION

I, Lindsay Moilanen, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, declare as follows:

1. I am Senior Counsel in Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission's New York Regional Office and am the principal investigative attorney working on this matter.

2. I make this Declaration because I am the counsel on this matter with the most knowledge of the matters reflected in this Declaration.

3. Pursuant to Local Civil Rule 11.2, I certify that the matter in controversy alleged in the foregoing Complaint is not the subject of a civil complaint by private plaintiffs.

4. Pursuant to Local Civil Rule 11.2, I certify that the matter in controversy alleged in the foregoing Complaint is the subject of a criminal action pending in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, captioned *United States v. Schamens*, Mag. No. 22-10299. The parties to that matter are Plaintiff United States and Defendant David W. Schamens.

5. The matter in controversy in the foregoing Complaint is not the subject of any other action pending in any court, or of any pending arbitration or administrative proceeding, to my knowledge.

6. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on March 7, 2022
New York, New York

/s/ Lindsay S. Moilanen
Lindsay S. Moilanen